
SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LAESCYP 
MEETING

4.00 pm MONDAY, 10TH APRIL, 2017

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and 
using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to 

the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Self Evaluation of Promoting Social Inclusion and 
Wellbeing 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 1 - 6

4. Self Evaluation of Support for Additional Learning 
Needs 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 7 - 12

5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

7. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor L Mytton (Chair)

Councillors: S Williams, M Davies, D Jones, G Lewis, 
S Slater and C Tovey

Co-optees: C Brown, M Harris, R Lazell, A Rees and 
A Roberts

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000  www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Self-evaluation of promoting social inclusion and 
wellbeing

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The local authority has a planned work programme for the Self-Evaluation Report 
(SER) in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be used to highlight any 
areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on standards and 
performance.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to provide the current judgement for Key Question 2.3 in 
the SER which is promoting social inclusion and wellbeing.

1.3 The judgement is that promoting social inclusion and wellbeing is good.  The SER is 
available as a Background Paper.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION that

2.1 the content of this report be discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Self-evaluation is the essential step in a cyclical process of bringing about change 
and improvement.  The steps in the process are:
 Monitoring and evaluating improvement
 Planning for improvement
 Undertaking improvement work

3.2 The local authority’s Self-Evaluation Report (SER) for LAESCYP services is being 
reviewed and updated to ensure that the judgements and actions will lead to 
improved outcomes for all learners.  At the heart of self-evaluation are three 
questions: 
 How well are we doing? 

Date Written 3rd April 2017
Report Author Dorothy Haines
Service Area Learning
Committee Date 10th April 2017

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 How do we know? 
 How can we improve things further? 

3.3 ESTYN are currently reviewing the framework for the inspection of local authorities 
which will be piloted in 2017/18 and implemented in 2018/19.  The local authority has 
a planned work programme in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be 
used to highlight any areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on 
standards and performance.  The information collected will lead into the local 
authority’s delivery plans for improving the quality of provision.  Reports on all the 
areas of the SER will be presented to LASECYP Scrutiny over the coming months.

3.4 Estyn produced ‘A self-evaluation manual for local authority education services for 
children and young people 2010’ and although the framework will be replaced this 
remains a useful document to support self-evaluation.  The extract related to 
promoting social inclusion and wellbeing is included in Appendix 1.

3.5 In December 2015, Estyn judged that ‘the latest self-evaluation report is an accurate 
and honest evaluation of the education service’s work.  It helps ensure a clearer 
corporate understanding of the strengths and areas for improvement in the education 
service’.  The review of the SER will build upon the judgements made in the last 
SER.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 In 2014/2015, promoting social inclusion and wellbeing was judged good. 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The promotion of, and provision for, social inclusion and wellbeing by the local 
authority and by schools is good.
 There is effective promotion of social inclusion and wellbeing of all children and 

young people, including healthy lifestyle choices, behaviour, anti-bullying, 
preventing exclusion and education other than at school (EOTAS) resulting in 
good outcomes 

 There is effective promotion of attendance and education, employment and 
training for young people 

 Youth support services and personal support is good
 Safeguarding arrangements are good

The promotion of social inclusion and wellbeing is not yet excellent school 
attendance rates for the local authority, although improving over time, are not above 
national benchmarks.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 The local authority’s ambition is to be ranked in the top 10 performing local 
authorities by 2017 and is making good progress towards achieving this target.  
Effective support for social inclusion and wellbeing can provide a clear, demonstrable 
and beneficial effect on learners.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

Page 2



7.1      The key priorities for improvement are to:
 Improve levels of wellbeing for all pupils; mental, emotional and physical.
 Improve rates of attendance across the primary and secondary phases.
 Reduce exclusions for the shorter period of five days or less
 Enable schools to improve levels of parental engagement. 
 Embed engagement with pupils at local authority level to ensure that their voice 

is heard to influence future planning. 
 Improve the outcomes for attainment for Children Looked After.

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 Promoting social inclusion and wellbeing contributes substantially to the capacity to 
achieve the corporate priority of raising standards of attainment.

DOROTHY HAINES
CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 3



Appendix 1 
Extract from ‘A self-evaluation manual for local authority education services for 
children and young people 2010’
How do we evaluate the promotion of social inclusion and wellbeing? (CIF 2.3)

How well do we work to promote social inclusion and wellbeing of all children and young 
people, including healthy lifestyle choices, behaviour, anti-bullying, preventing exclusion 
and education otherwise than at school (EOTAS)? (CIF 2.3.1)

Questions we should consider about how well we work to promote social inclusion and 
wellbeing of all children and young people, including making healthy lifestyle choices, 
behaviour, anti-bullying, preventing exclusion and EOTAS

 How well do we co-ordinate and provide a range of universal and targeted services 
to promote social inclusion and the wellbeing of all children and young people? What 
is the impact of these services?

 Do all children and young people, including vulnerable groups (defined in Annex 5 of 
the LAESCYP guidance), receive their equal entitlement to education, enjoy learning 
and achieve high standards (including both formal and informal qualifications) attend 
school regularly and participate fully in education?

 How effectively do we work with school improvement and other services to use data 
appropriately to identify the performance and needs of specific groups of vulnerable 
children and young people?

 How well is data used to set meaningful targets for improvement, monitor 
educational progress and target interventions appropriately?

 Is our PRU (or other similar provision) working effectively?
 How well do we meet our statutory duties in respect of LAC and corporate parenting, 

excluded pupils, promoting race equality and combating racism, preventing and 
tackling bullying and child protection and wellbeing?

 Do the education services, social services, the local authority’s youth service, the 
youth offending team and other youth support services have agreed and effective 
procedures for working together and sharing information?

 How effective is multi-agency work in meeting the needs of children and young 
people? How well do we collect, monitor and evaluate the outcomes of this work?

 Do we have comprehensive, effective procedures for consultation with children, 
young people and communities?

How well do we promote attendance and keep children and young people in education, 
employment and training (CIF 2.3.2)

Questions we should consider about how well we promote attendance and keep children 
and young people in education, employment and training

 Do we have clear policies, strategies and interventions to promote attendance and 
reduce unauthorised absence?

 Do we have good and effective working relationships with relevant authority services, 
schools and other agencies, including the youth offending team, police and courts?

 Do we use our legal powers consistently and appropriately?
 Do we meet all our statutory and legal responsibilities?
 Do we monitor the use of exclusion in schools including the rates and length of fixed-

term exclusions, the rate of permanent exclusions and the number of exclusions 
overturned by independent appeal panels?

 How effective is our action to reduce exclusion?

Page 4



 Do we have effective arrangements in place for young people making the transition 
back into school?

 Do we have effective strategies to identify and reduce the numbers of children and 
young people who are not in, or at risk of being out of, education, employment or 
training?

 Do we promptly provide full-time education of a high standard for excluded pupils 
and young offenders?

 Do we have effective guidance, support and training for behaviour management in 
schools?

 Do we have effective procedures in place to monitor the quality of education 
provided for children and young people educated outside school, including those 
children educated at home by their parents? Do we provide parents with good quality 
guidance to do this?

 Do we fulfil our responsibilities well with regards to the delivery of the youth offending 
team? Do we have an effective range of targeted programmes to prevent children 
and young people from offending?

 Do we have effective processes for sharing information about the educational 
performance of young people who offend and those at risk of offending? Do these 
processes enable appropriate evaluation to be done and joint planning of individual 
learning plans within appropriate timescales?

 How well do we monitor the performance of children and young people who offend? 
Do we have appropriate and effective intervention strategies?

How good are our youth support services and personal support? (CIF 2.3.3)

Questions we should consider about our youth support services and personal support
 Are our individual youth support services of a good quality?
 Do we have a good quality youth service? How do we know? Evidence?
 Does the evaluation of the Children and Young People’s partnership show how well 

youth support services meet the needs of children and young people?
 Do children and young people have good access to programmes which offer 

accreditation or recognition for learning and participation, such as the Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award, OCNs, Youth Achievement Awards and Millennium Volunteers?

 Do we have a good range of opportunities for young people to access personal 
support, advice and guidance? Is school based counselling in response to their 
individual needs?

How good are our safeguarding arrangements? (CIF 2.3.4)
In evaluating safeguarding arrangements we need to ensure that we have appropriate 
arrangements for safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. We need to ensure that we 
are meeting the legal requirements. 

The legislative background is to be found in:
 Safeguarding Children: Working Together under the Children Act 2004;
 Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006: Controlled Activities Wales;
 In Safe Hands: Implementing adult protection procedures in Wales, 2000;
 All Wales Child Protection Procedures 2008;
 National Assembly for Wales Circular 34/02 Child Protection: Preventing unsuitable 

people from working with children and young people in the education service;
 Safeguarding Children in Education: Welsh Government circular 05/08; and
 Independent School Standards (Wales) Regulations 2003.

Questions we should consider about our safeguarding arrangements
 Do we have appropriate policies and procedures in place in respect of safeguarding?Page 5



 Do these include undertaking CRB checks on school governors and/or adults 
working in other supervisory or governance roles within other settings? For example, 
this may include member organisations of the Children and Young People’s 
partnership?

 Does our policy have:
 a named senior member of staff with responsibilities for dealing with child 

protection and safeguarding issues and for providing advice/support to other 
staff;

 clear and effective procedures that reflect the All Wales Child Protection 
Procedures 2008; and

 arrangements for training?
 Do we have effective recruitment, disciplinary and reporting arrangements to ensure 

the suitability of staff and volunteers?
 Do handbooks state that guidance relating to these issues will be updated to reflect 

changes in legislation that are anticipated?

Page 6



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000  www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Self-evaluation of support for additional learning 
needs

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The local authority has a planned work programme for the Self-Evaluation Report 
(SER) in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be used to highlight any 
areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on standards and 
performance.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to provide the current judgement for Key Question 2.2 in 
the SER, which is support for additional learning needs.

1.3 The judgement is that support for additional learning needs is adequate.  The SER is 
available as a Background Paper.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION that

2.1 the content of this report be discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Self-evaluation is the essential step in a cyclical process of bringing about change 
and improvement.  The steps in the process are:
 Monitoring and evaluating improvement
 Planning for improvement
 Undertaking improvement work

3.2 The local authority’s Self-Evaluation Report (SER) for LAESCYP services is being 
reviewed and updated to ensure that the judgements and actions will lead to 
improved outcomes for all learners.  At the heart of self-evaluation are three 
questions: 
 How well are we doing? 

Date Written 3rd April 2017
Report Author Dorothy Haines
Service Area Learning
Committee Date 10th April 2017

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 How do we know? 
 How can we improve things further? 

3.3 ESTYN are currently reviewing the framework for the inspection of local authorities 
which will be piloted in 2017/18 and implemented in 2018/19.  The local authority has 
a planned work programme in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be 
used to highlight any areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on 
standards and performance.  The information collected will lead into the local 
authority’s delivery plans for improving the quality of provision.  Reports on all the 
areas of the SER will be presented to LASECYP Scrutiny over the coming months.

3.4 Estyn produced ‘A self-evaluation manual for local authority education services for 
children and young people 2010’ and although the framework will be replaced this 
remains a useful document to support self-evaluation.  The extract related to 
promoting social inclusion and wellbeing is included in Appendix 1.

3.5 In December 2015, Estyn judged that ‘the latest self-evaluation report is an accurate 
and honest evaluation of the education service’s work.  It helps ensure a clearer 
corporate understanding of the strengths and areas for improvement in the education 
service’.  The review of the SER will build upon the judgements made in the last 
SER.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 In 2014/2015, support for additional learning needs was judged adequate. 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The judgement for support for additional learning needs is adequate:
 Statutory obligations are met
 Standards vary for groups of pupils with Additional Learning Needs and are 

adequate
 overall through good in some areas
 Provision is adequate overall and improving, with pockets of good and excellent 

practice
 Partnership working with parents is adequate overall with pockets of good and 

excellent practice

Support for additional learning needs is not yet good because the improvements 
need to be consistent across all services and all schools and to bring about improved 
outcomes

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 The local authority’s ambition is to be ranked in the top 10 performing local 
authorities by 2017 and is making good progress towards achieving this target.  
Effective support for additional learning needs can provide a clear, demonstrable and 
beneficial effect on learners.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1      The key priorities for improvement are to:Page 8



 Improve educational achievement of looked-after children who have ALN and of 
pupils EOTAS
 Improve the capacity of schools to be effective at  early identification, assessment
and intervention 
 Ensure all local authority ALN services are effective, efficient and economical
 Improve provision for pupils with difficulties in mental health 
 Improve consultation with children and young people and their families

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 Support for additional learning needs contributes substantially to the capacity to 
achieve the corporate priority of raising standards of attainment.

DOROTHY HAINES
CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 9



Appendix 1 
Extract from ‘A self-evaluation manual for local authority education services for 
children and young people 2010’
How do we evaluate support for additional learning needs and educational 
inclusion? (CIF 2.2) 
We should judge the impact of our provision on educational outcomes for all children and 
young people with ALN aged five to 16 years, and where appropriate on children under five 
and young people over 16. This involves the range of needs including the needs of learners 
who are gifted and talented. 
The term ALN applies to children and young people whose learning needs are additional to 
the majority of their peers as defined in Annex 5 of the LAESCYP guidance handbook. 

How well do we meet statutory obligations in respect of children and young people 
with ALN? (CIF 2.2.1) 
Questions we should consider about how well we meet statutory obligations in respect of 
children and young people with ALN 
 How well do we fulfil the requirements of the SEN and Disability act 2001, the Children 
Act 2004 and section 175 of the Education Act 2002? 
 Do we provide all children and young people who have statements of SEN with the 
additional provision to which they are entitled? 
 Do we ensure that safeguarding policies and procedures effectively promote the safety 
and wellbeing of children and young people with ALN? 
 Do we promote the educational achievement of LAC who have ALN? 
 How good are we at early identification, evaluation and intervention of pupils with ALN? 
 Do pupils with ALN have access to good quality provision that meets their needs? 

How well are we raising standards for children and young people with ALN? (CIF 
2.2.2) 
Questions we should consider about how well we are raising standards for children and 
young people with ALN 
 How good is our training in ALN for early years and school staff? Does it enable them to 
meet the needs of children and young people with ALN? Does it develop the capacity of all 
educational settings to meet pupils’ ALN? 
 Do outreach services have a positive impact on outcomes for children and young people 
with ALN? 
 How effectively do our ALN services work with school improvement and other services to 
use data appropriately to identify the performance and needs of children and young people 
with ALN? 
 How well is data used to set meaningful targets for improvement, monitor educational 
progress and target interventions appropriately? 
 How well do we monitor and evaluate the impact of our policies and provision on the 
achievements of children and young people with ALN? 
 How well do we take appropriate, timely action to address underperformance? 

How good is provision for children and young people with ALN, including provision 
that is commissioned and/or provided by or with other agencies? (CIF 2.2.3) 
Questions we should consider about how good provision is for children and young people 
with ALN, including provision that is commissioned and/or provided by or with other 
agencies 
 How effective is our work with children and young people with ALN in helping them make 
good progress towards meeting their targets, preventing exclusions and ensuring good 
attendance? 

Page 10



 Do we identify children with ALN at a sufficiently early stage for their needs to be met? 
 Do we have clear criteria for allocating and ceasing to provide additional support for 
pupils with ALN? Is this criteria consistently applied across all agencies? 
 Do children and young people have access to an appropriate range of good quality 
support that effectively meets their needs? 
 How well does the provision for children and young people with ALN meet their 
curriculum, staffing, equipment and transport needs? Is this co-ordinated effectively? 
 Do we regularly evaluate the progress of children and young people with ALN and review 
the targets set for them? Is this shared between agencies? 
 Do pupils with difficulties in physical or mental health who are unable to attend school 
receive as much education as possible, and maintain good links with their schools? 
 Do we prepare and support children and young people with ALN well when they make 
transitions between different phases of education and different settings? 
 Do we give impartial information, advice and guidance on educational training and 
employment opportunities to children and young people with ALN? 
 Do we provide effective support to pupils with difficult behaviour or who are reluctant to 
attend school? 
 Do children and young people with ALN receive timely and effective support? 
 Do we consult children and young people on key decisions that affect them? 

How well do we work with parents and carers of children and young people with 
ALN? (CIF 2.2.4) 
Questions we should consider about how well we work with parents and carers of children 
and young people with ALN 
 How does the support we provide for parents and carers of children and young people 
with ALN impact on outcomes? 
 How well do we co-ordinate advice and support for parents and carers of children and 
young people with ALN? 
 How well do we provide clear information that enables parents and carers of children and 
young people with ALN to access services? 
 Do we provide clear information to parents/carers about their child’s progress and 
achievements? 
 Do services support parents/carers and help them contribute to evaluation of their child’s 
needs? 
 Are parents and carers of children and young people with ALN helped to obtain 
evaluations of their own needs as appropriate? 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Self Evaluation of Promoting Social Inclusion and Wellbeing
	4 Self Evaluation of Support for Additional Learning Needs

